MINUTES
CITY OF ST. CHARLES, IL
PLAN COMMISSION
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2013

Members Present: Todd Wallace, Chairman
Brian Doyle
Tim Kessler
Sue Amatangelo
Curt Henningson
Tom Schuetz

Tom Pretz
Members Absent: None
Also Present: Russell Colby, Planning Division Manager

Rita Tungare, Director of Community Development
Matthew O’Rourke, Planner

Sonntag Court Reporter

1. Call to order
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chairman Wallace.

2. Roll Call
Chairman Wallace called the roll. A quorum was present.

3. Presentation of minutes of the August 6, 2013 meeting.

A motion was made, seconded and unanimously passed by voice vote to accept the minutes
of the August 6, 2013 meeting.

PUBLIC HEARING

4, Charlestowne Mall PUD Redevelopment (SC 3800 Main, LLC)
Application for Amendment to Special Use for Planned Unit Development Ordinance No.
1988-Z-10 (Charlestowne Mall PUD) and its subsequent amendments (Ords. 1989-Z-8,
1991-7-2, 1994-7-8, 1995-Z-16) for the purpose of establishing new planned unit
development standards for the redevelopment of Charlestowne Mall.

Supporting Documents:
Conceptual Site Plan dated 9/19/13
Conceptual Site Improvement Plans dated 9/19/13

The attached transcript prepared by Sonntag Reporting Service, Ltd., is by reference hereby made a
part of these minutes.
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Mr. Doyle made a motion to continue the public hearing to October 22, 2013. Mr. Schuetz
seconded the motion.

Roll Call Vote:

Ayes: Henningson, Kessler, Scheutz, Pretz, Amatangelo, Doyle, Wallace
Nays: None

Absent: None

Motion carried.
5. Meeting Announcements
Tuesday, October 22, 2013 at 7:00pm Council Chambers

Tuesday, November 5, 2013 at 7:00pm Council Chambers
Tuesday, November 19, 2013 at 7:00pm Council Chambers

6. Additional Business from Plan Commission Members, Staff, or Citizens-None.

7. Adjournment at 8:17 p.m.
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S63115
STATE OF ILLINOIS )

) SS.
COUNTY OF K A N E )

BEFORE THE PLAN COMMISSION
OF THE CITY OF ST. CHARLES

In the Matter of:

Charlestowne Mall
PUD Redevelopment.

N N N N S

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had at the hearing of
the above-entitled matter before the Plan
Commission of the City of St. Charles in the
Council Chambers, 2 East Main Street, St. Charles,
Illinois, on October 8, 2013, at the hour of
7:00 p.m.
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PRESENT:

ALSO

MR. TODD WALLACE, Chairman;

MR. TIM KESSLER, Vice Chairman;
MS. SUE AMATANGELO, Member;

MR. BRIAN DOYLE, Member;

MR. CURT HENNINGSON, Member;
MR. THOMAS PRETZ, Member; and
MR. TOM SCHUETZ, Member.

PRESENT:

MR. RUSSELL COLBY, Planning Division Manager;

MR. MATTHEW O'ROURKE, Planner; and

MS. RITA TUNGARE, Community Development Director.

Chicago-area Realtime Reporters, Ltd.
800.232.0265 - Chicago-Realtime.com




REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS -- 10/8/2013

© 0 N O o0 A W N P

N N N NN P B R B R R R P R R
X W N P O © 0 N 0O 00 M W N R O

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: This meeting of

the St. Charles Plan Commission will come to

order.
Tim.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Amatangelo.
MEMBER AMATANGELO: Here.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Schuetz.
MEMBER SCHUETZ: Here.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Doyle.
MEMBER DOYLE: Here.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Pretz.
MEMBER PRETZ: Here.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Henningson.
MEMBER HENNINGSON: Here.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Wallace.
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Here.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Kessler,
here.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Item
No. 3 on your agenda is the presentation of the
minutes of the August 6th, 2013, meeting.
Is there a motion to approve?
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: So moved.
MEMBER AMATANGELO: Second.
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CHAIRMAN WALLACE: 1It's moved and
seconded.

Any discussion on the motion?

(No response.)
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: It was seconded by
Sue, moved by Tim.
All in favor.
(The ayes were thereupon heard.)
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Opposed.
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: The motion passes
unanimously.

Moving on to Item No. 4 -- before we begin
this item, I would just like to say welcome to
everyone who is here tonight and give you a
little bit of information about where you are.

The role of the Plan Commission is to
conduct public hearings for rezoning, special
use, and new developments that come before the
City. The Plan Commission is made up of unpaid
volunteers appointed by the mayor to act as an
advisory board to the City Council.

The Plan Commission does not set policies

for the City. We do not invite proposals or

Chicago-area Realtime Reporters, Ltd.
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plans to come before us. Rather, it is our job
to be educated on the provisions of the City's
zoning ordinance and to conduct an investigation
of whether the proposals that are presented
comply with that code.

Our method for conducting that
investigation is a public hearing which is what
Item 4 on the agenda will be.

We will collect information tonight first
from the Applicant, which will present the
information that is in his application, and that
will be followed by questions from the Plan
Commission members and then followed by questions
from members of the audience.

Then after that, if anyone wishes to offer
any additional information, they will be called
to do so. At the end, the Applicant will have
the chance to offer any rebuttal information, if
necessary.

At that point once we have collected enough
information and we feel that we can make an
informed decision, there will be a motion to
close the public hearing. Following closing the

public hearing, we will make a recommendation.
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That will not happen today is my understanding.

Russ, is it still correct that at our next
meeting, it will be on the agenda for action?

MR. COLBY: Correct.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: So at the next
meeting, there will be an item for action on this
matter.

Now, at that time, we will make a
recommendation to the City Council whether they
should approve or deny the application that 1is
before us.

Any questions so far?

MR. CLOUGE: When is the next
meeting?

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Hold on. Maybe I
should tell you. Before you ask any questions,
you need to be recognized, you know, and say what
your name is for the record.

MR. CLOUGE: Mal Clouge, 3703 King
Charles Lane.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Okay.

MR. CLOUGE: When is the next
meeting?

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: The next meeting

Chicago-area Realtime Reporters, Ltd.
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will be October 22nd, two weeks from now.

At this time I would ask -- well, actually,
I'1l read what Item 4 is. 1It's Charlestowne Mall
PUD Redevelopment, SC 3800 Main, LLC.
Application for Amendment to Special Use for
Planned Unit Development Ordinance No. 1988-7-10,
Charlestowne Mall PUD, and its subsequent
amendments, Ordinances 1989-Z-8, 1991-Z-2,
1994-7-8, 1995-Z-16, for the purpose of
establishing new planned unit development
standards for the redevelopment of
Charlestowne Mall.

Supporting documents are Conceptual Site
Plan dated 9/19/13, Conceptual Site Improvement
Plans dated 9/19/13, and we also have exhibits.

Exhibit A is Application for Special Use
received 9/19/13; Exhibit B is Staff Memorandum
dated 10/4/13; Exhibit C is Technical Memorandum
from HLR dated 10/1/13; Exhibit D is Conceptual
Site Plan dated 9/19/13; Exhibit E is Conceptual
Site Improvement Plans dated 9/19/13; Exhibit F
is Landscape Plan Concept dated 10/1/13; and
Exhibit G is Charlestowne Mall PUD Ordinances
1988-7Z-10, 1989-7Z-8, 1991-Z-2, 1994-7-8, and
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1995-7-16.

Are there any other exhibits for this
application? Okay.

At this time is the Applicant present in
the room?

MR. PYLE: Yes.
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Okay. If the
Applicant -- just a second if the Applicant and
anyone who wishes to offer any testimony or ask
any questions at all tonight would raise their
right hand and be sworn in.
(The witnesses were thereupon
duly sworn.)
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Thank you very
much.

As I said before, the Applicant will come
and make the presentation; and after that, the
Plan Commission will ask questions followed by
members of the public.

What I should have stated at the beginning,
if you do wish to speak, I would ask first that
you be recognized by me so that we only have one
person speaking at a time. This is all being

taken down into a record, and there is a court
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reporter here in the room. Although she is
talented, she is not talented enough to do 15
different people speaking at the same time. So I
would ask that you please follow that suggestion.

When you speak, please come up to the
lectern, state your first name and last name and
spell your last name for the record and also
state your address.

Any questions?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Sorry,
staff.

MR. COLBY: Yes. I was just going to
give a couple brief remarks before it goes to the
Applicant.

Some background on the application -- the
Charlestowne PUD was approved in 1988. The mall
opened in 1991. The property was last extended
in 1995 when the movie theater was added.

The application that's before the
Commission is to amend the 1988 PUD ordinance for
the mall. The original PUD was based upon the
mall as a single structure located at the center

of the property. Therefore, the PUD at a minimum
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needs to be amended to allow for the outlot
buildings that are proposed to be located along
Route 64.

But amending the PUD also provides an
opportunity for the City to update the PUD
requirements and to align them with our current
zoning ordinance standards, in particular for
building design and landscaping.

Under the proposal, there is no rezoning of
the property and no intensification of land uses
in terms of the square footage and the permitted
uses that are already allowed.

In terms of process, this PUD amendment
will include approval of the concept site plan,
and that plan will be used to demonstrate the
design intent for the PUD and help establish
parameters for future applications.

The developer will need to return a full
PUD preliminary plan application later as each
building is constructed, and those applications
will come before the Plan Commission for review
again for PUD and zoning ordinance standards.
There is a draft of those PUD standards that is

included in the staff memo.
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CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right.

Thank you.

Is the Applicant ready, again?

MR. PYLE: Sure.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Come on up.

MR. PYLE: My name is David Pyle. My
address is 44 Montgomery Street in San Francisco,
California.

I want to start with the opportunity we all
have here with the Charlestowne Mall. Actually,
I'd like to thank you all for showing up here
tonight and doing this. I know it's a volunteer
organization. I think that's fabulous.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Thank you.

MR. PYLE: This center when it was
built, there was a time that it was held by a
lender; and during that period of time -- you
probably all know this, but to get to the
history. When it was held by a lender, a lender
doesn't really operate a mall well, and tenants,
when they want to renew or to talk to someone,
there was nobody there to answer the phone
primarily.

At the same time, they finally disposed of

Chicago-area Realtime Reporters, Ltd.
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another organization who had some great plans,
but never really put the capital in to put in
these plans, and in the meantime, the tenants
started leaving. They fled.

You'll notice that you've got a great
Von Maur store in there that's doing quite well,
and Carson Pirie is still there, and the theater
is doing quite well; but due to lack of attention
to the mall, the tenants have left the mall.

The mall has great bones we say. It's got
this great skylight system, and it's enclosed,
and it's a four season. You know, any time
whether it's hot, cold, nice weather, it's a nice
environment to be inside of there. It just needs
tenants and customers again. So our opportunity
here is to try to turn this around.

Now, I'd like to go back to who we are, the
Krausz Companies. We're a family-owned company,
third generation. Actually, a member of the
third generation is in the room here today.

We are a large-small company or a
small-large company. We have quite a bit of
holdings, and we have a small core group of

people that pay attention to the project,

Chicago-area Realtime Reporters, Ltd.
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principals and owners of the project. What we do
is we get the right size project or the right
size for us, and they may be more complicated,
but we're involved. There isn't a committee.
There isn't people getting sent off and come back
to the committee. So we're able to make quick
decisions and get very involved in a project.

We have the resources to do a project this
size. We're not so large like a RIT that we have
to turn it around real fast. We get very
involved from beginning to end, soup to nuts.

I'm out here every week. Even though my address
is in San Francisco, I'm getting to know your
area very, very well and the O'Hare Airport.

We have done this several times with malls,
industrial properties, office buildings. Where
there will be a project that has great
opportunity, great bones, but someone needs to
pay attention to it. That's what we have been
doing for 30, 40 years through generations.

The mall -- besides not having the tenants
and the customers in there, this is an older
style of mall. This is a time of -- I think,

Russ mentioned it. It was a single building out

Chicago-area Realtime Reporters, Ltd.
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in the middle of a parking lot. This is what we
call a "fortress-style mall." There is no
presence out to Main Street out there, your new
Main Street. 1It's finally getting finished.

You don't know what's in there until you go
in. That's changed these days. There's
lifestyle centers. There's all kinds of
different ways of bringing people into a space,
from the street all the way up to the center.

So we need to change some physical aspects
of this mall, and another thing is that we need
to get customers and we need to get tenants.
We're in the tenant business. We're not really
in the real estate business. We're in the tenant
business.

So we need to get tenants, and we need to
show that there is change out there and that
there is a reason to come back to this mall.

It's almost harder to, say, come back to a mall
than it is I've got a brand new mall from the
ground up.

So we need to show change. So this is the
way the mall looks now. This is our site plan

for the mall. Unlike most site plans, what we've

Chicago-area Realtime Reporters, Ltd.
800.232.0265 - Chicago-Realtime.com




REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS -- 10/8/2013

© 0 N oo o M W N P

[
o

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

15
got here is a plan on the inside of the mall
superposed on the site. So it appears that it's
open, but it still has a roof on it. So what you
see here is a plan, and this is on, say, the
second level, and this is the plan on the first
level of the mall. Those drawings -- it appears
that this is an outdoor street, but this is
really still maintaining the skylights and the
ceiling.

To refresh everyone, currently, the mall is
configured with a parking lot that's up high here
with an entrance to the Sears store and Von Maur.
The parking lot is high up here, and then it
drops down to a lower level through this area.

At this break, it's high, and then now we're back
where it's low, the north side.

What we propose to do is to demolish our
empty Sears store there and parts of the mall and
move some of that shopping real estate and the
square footage out to paths on the street. So
the experience is starting to happen out on the
main street here.

Also, where this location and this location

a little bit up here that's existing, we call

Chicago-area Realtime Reporters, Ltd.
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them the landscape mountains, that the earth has
been pumped up there, and it -- you can't see the
mall from there. Visibility is king to
tenants -- to tenants especially, so we'd like to
remove those humps, those mountains, and increase
the visibility into the center, like this, and
then replace it with paths, so you start having
experience on the street.

We even have some restaurant paths, maybe
financial institution type paths. So there's an
experience coming into the mall.

Also there's a little retail area here,
maybe one or two tenants; and then up here, what
we're trying to do is get some dining
opportunities with outdoor patios.

With the demolition of this store right now
there's -- right now, right here there's like
almost a 15-foot grade change here. If you're
out here and you're looking up at this parking
lot, you're not even aware of this side of the
Sears store or currently the Sears store or the
movie theater.

With our proposed plan, what we'd like to

do is grade this down where Sears was and make it
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so it's a gradual grade change all the way down
to this, what we call, "Retail Unit A." So when
you're out here on the street, you actually don't
get blocked right here as it currently is
configured, but you can see all the way back
to here.

We have a paved piece of property back here
that right now we're labeling commercial. 1It's a
placeholder at the moment, I think, because we're
still waiting to see what this property owner
back here is planning on doing. We understood
there's some talk of making some commercial units
back there, maybe office. I don't know that it's
retail.

We want to be able to develop that site,
but we might make it more cohesive with what else
is going on with the property next to it. Maybe
it's on the other slide. Currently, it's the
Hoffmann property.

We also are removing the existing food
court that's in the back of the center that
protrudes out there and relocating it to the
front of the center over here next to the

Carson's store with the idea of opening this up
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with some glass and an outdoor deck over the
entrance there, so you can have indoor/outdoor
dining on the food court. Again, it's bringing
more life to the main street side of the mall,
more activity.

What we also want to do is dress up these
entrances, these bare walls. It's the center
of this building. It's a major tenant in the
mall, and there's no architectural distinction
between the Carson store and the Von Maur, which
was a Penney store at one time. It's a blank
wall. So we want to create some distinction in
the few areas that we have, that we own, that we
can do that.

So what we do is -- to give you a sense,
here's an example of what I'm talking about.
This is over there by the restaurant area. This
would be, if you're standing right about where
the cursor is, looking over towards Von Maur.

Does this all show up on your computers
there?

MEMBER DOYLE: We do have it.
MR. PYLE: I was going to say no one

is looking.
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So if you're standing at that corner,
you've got a bit of what we call the Retail A
building. We've got the outdoor patios of the
restaurants, a couple of restaurants. We've got
an opportunity to get some presence on the main
street side for the cinema. They have a vertical
signage program, and so we'd like to get that out
there on that side saying, Look, the theater 1is
here.

This is the mall entrance again and then a
couple more restaurants. Back here is the
Von Maur store. So we have a little village feel
here at the entrance of the mall. It gives more
exposure for the theater. We get more exposure
for the retail on the west end of the mall, and
we get some outdoor dining experiences.

This is that end by the food court. The
Carson store is right here. You'll see we open
up the area for the food court. We get some
outdoor dining. We get some weather relief out
there for the entrance.

We need to -- we're working on cleaning up
those truck courts. Unfortunately, they're

designed right there at the entrance of the mall.
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So we're trying to find ways to hide all that
activity back there, and also create more of an
articulation on the building to give it a more --
I wouldn't say urban, but more distinction about
it instead of that blank wall.

In the back -- I just got this an hour ago,
and I've been having a discussion with the
architect. So this is an idea for the entrance
in the back where the food court used to be.

What we want to do is get a mall entrance, more
landscaping than I see in this drawing, and some
transparency to the stores. So we're looking at
some larger stores and an opportunity to, you
know, not have a blank wall towards the back of
the center.

Other than this, we're not proposing doing
any other construction, adding paths, doing
anything new back on the north end of the mall,
other than this corner over here next to the
other commercial property.

Our focus is to really use the Main Street,
Route 64. There's enough traffic out there to
open the mall up, so to say, to bring in more

attention to the center.
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What our goal is both for the inside is to
have a -- you know, it's a place for -- a safe
place where families, couples can come and eat,
shop, have fun, gather. 1It's a gathering place.
It's a place where there's more of a center
to it.

I believe that's most of my presentation.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Thank
you.

First, we'll start with questions from the
Plan Commission. Anyone want to start?

MEMBER SCHUETZ: I just have a
general question on the outlots, and you
mentioned some smaller stores and possibly
financial -- banks, I assume you mean.

How do you see that drawing in -- I think
from a visual standpoint, I think is what you
were commenting on, but how do you perceive
drawing people into it?

MR. PYLE: Well, you start getting
traffic at the center. You've got a movie
theater there. If you have a restaurant there,
you go to a movie -- dinner and a movie.

The other is -- for a visual sense is you
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don't have -- it breaks up that parking lot, that
fortress up there at the end of the parking lot,
but going to the movie, dinner.

MEMBER SCHUETZ: My biggest -- what's
the right word? -- encouragement for all of you
would be to be sure that this is very, very
pedestrian friendly and not so vehicular. It
appears that in all your drawings, you use a lot
of small cars, and I understand why, so it
doesn't take so much space. But it just seems
like so many malls, like you say, are all
parking, and it's dangerous, and it's not
pedestrian friendly.

MR. PYLE: I understand that. You
know, I mean the population of the mall now are
mall walkers because there's no shopping there.
A lot of the pedestrian activity is inside the
mall at this point in time.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yes, Sue.

MEMBER AMATANGELO: Just one quick
question, Mr. Pyle.

Have you done any other projects of this
sort locally here in the Chicagoland area?

MR. PYLE: Have I done a mall? No, I
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have not. I have worked in the Chicago area, but
it was an industrial project that got started --
a very large industrial project that got started
right before the recession and got stopped, but
it's not my first time in your market.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Brian.

MEMBER DOYLE: Yes. First of all,
I'd just like to say that the facade that you've
shown us, the renderings on the southwest corner
of the building which is where the Sears
currently stands, I really appreciate and like
what you're proposing there conceptually.

I'm not quite certain how you get the
visibility through to the cinema. I mean --

MR. PYLE: Well, what we're getting
is two things. We're getting a signage
opportunity on that side of the center where
there really isn't much now. The other is these
buildings may be shorter than the cinema building
as well because of the screen heights of the
cinema. They're a taller roof, and then these
are smaller. So you'll see some more
dimensionality.

MEMBER DOYLE: The food court on the
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other side --
MR. PYLE: Over here.
MEMBER DOYLE: -- near Kohl's, how
far back -- do you know how far back the open-air

area would go? I mean, is it like a --

MR. PYLE: Oh, you mean in the spot
outside?

MEMBER DOYLE: Well, if you could
show that rendering again.

MR. PYLE: You're talking about this
right here?

MEMBER DOYLE: Yes. So I assume that
at some point -- you've got a patio with a glass
roof is what I'm seeing, and at some point,
you've got some sort of doors, you know, wall
that breaks it up. So how far back would the
outside area go?

MR. PYLE: Well, currently, in --
I've got to find the pictures.

Currently, there's a bump right there and a
bump right there. What we're doing is filling
that in. If you go back to -- no, no, no. See
that's a stair tower for the mall and an

elevator.
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MEMBER DOYLE: Okay.

MR. PYLE: Over here is more of back
of the house, again, another set of stairs. So
it's lining that up, and that dimension is maybe
15 feet, between 15 and 20 feet, maybe it's a
little more.

MEMBER DOYLE: Okay. I see.

MR. PYLE: So we're not cantilevering
out. We're filling in where the structure is
poking out.

MEMBER DOYLE: Right. So just
staying on the conceptual design for the
moment --

MR. PYLE: Yes.

MEMBER DOYLE: -- since we're -- I
think that's where a lot of people are interested
right now in terms of conveying that sense of
change to perspective tenants.

Something that I think would be intriguing
there: 1In areas where you have a very urban
streetscape, sometimes you have storefronts that
have sort of doors that you can open up, and you
can just open the entire store for an opening to

the sidewalk.
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MR. PYLE: Like Hawaii.

MEMBER DOYLE: What?

MR. PYLE: Like Hawaii.

MEMBER DOYLE: Well, I wasn't
thinking of Hawaii, but we do have them in
Chicago. And, you know, if it were possible to
actually have that patio, you know, during warm
weather --

MR. PYLE: I see what you mean,
inside, outside sort of feeling.

MEMBER DOYLE: Yeah. Exactly. I
think it could make for a really interesting
space.

MR. PYLE: I agree with that.

MEMBER DOYLE: So I just wanted to
share that.

MR. PYLE: Uh-huh.

MEMBER DOYLE: Some of the other
questions I have really get to the PUD
application. It's more technical stuff. So I'd
like to turn to that.

My first question really deals with the
outlots, and you've requested a variance of a

15-foot setback for parking on 64.
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MR. PYLE: Right.
MEMBER DOYLE: On your rendering
there of the site plan, it shows -- it's kind of

hard to see here, but there's the parking
between, say, P1 and P3 and P3 and P4 is a very
shallow lot that's just outside of that ring
road. And the other factor here is in terms of
the parking requirements. You're requesting that
there would be four parking units per 1,000 --

MR. PYLE: Per 1,000.

MEMBER DOYLE: -- feet of gross space
which would be spread across the entire parcel.

So 10 spaces is the standard for

restaurants. So one of my concerns is -- there's
a couple of concerns I have. One is our
comprehensive plan shows along Route 64 the
desirability of filling in some sidewalk gaps,
and I'm concerned that a 15-foot setback for
parking might preclude the ability to fill in
those sidewalk gaps along Route 64. So that's
one issue.

MR. PYLE: Just to be clear, so you
think maybe that should be less of a setback or

more for parking? You get more room for parking
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with less; right?

MEMBER DOYLE: Correct. If you're
trying to adhere to that ring road, the original
ring road.

MR. PYLE: Sure.

MEMBER DOYLE: If you extend it to
the 20-foot setback, then you've got less room
for parking.

MR. PYLE: Yeah. That really is the
thing.

MEMBER DOYLE: Right. Because the
converse issue, which I think speaks to your
point, is that if some of those outlots are
restaurants and they're on the other side of that
ring road and --

MR. PYLE: Traffic.

MEMBER DOYLE: -- you know, the
typical parking space for a restaurant is 10
units per 1,000 feet.

MR. PYLE: For front of the house or
some -- yeah.

MEMBER DOYLE: Well, my concern is
will there be adequate businesses -- the PUD

application that we're -- the amendments that
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we're looking to approve don't provide any
specific requirements for parking space
requirements for those outlots.

So if you put a restaurant out there, and
we understand that the parking space requirements
are fulfilled not only by those lots out there
but also by the general lot inside, that's -- you
know, families are going to have to cross that
ring road to get to that restaurant.

MR. PYLE: That is something we're
still looking at. You can see how sketchy this
is. We're still looking at trying to realign
this ring road a little more to actually address
what you're talking about here.

MEMBER DOYLE: That's --

MR. PYLE: We're having the same
conversation internally too.

MEMBER DOYLE: That's where I'm going
with this.

MR. PYLE: Yeah.

MEMBER DOYLE: I would prefer to see
the 20-foot setback maintained so that we have
room for sidewalks on Route 64 and some sort of

mechanism in the PUD that would ensure adequate
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parking on those outlots, if there is a
restaurant that's placed there, that would not
require families to cross that ring road, and
that would require bringing that ring road in,
and, of course, that's an expense for your
company. I recognize that.

MR. PYLE: Well, this will be the
grading. We've got a lot of grading out there.

MEMBER DOYLE: Yeah.

MR. PYLE: We're looking at -- and I
do some counts up there. Unfortunately, I can't
read them, and the buildings on the sketch are
oversized. They're drawn too large.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Okay. Hold on one
second. Let me just interrupt.

Russ, I'm wondering -- what's triggered in
my mind is trying to find some type of a
mechanism as we go through the approval process,
not only what we're looking at right now, so that
as we look at each subsequent site plan, whether
there's a mechanism that can be built in.

Because I almost feel like what you're
getting at is ensuring that we have a way to

concentrate enough parking spaces around these
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outlots as the plans are approved based on what
their uses are; correct?

MEMBER DOYLE: Yes.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Or are you looking
more at the actual positioning of the road and
then --

MEMBER DOYLE: Well, I think they're
interrelated. I think if we were to approve the
application as is as it relates to the question
here about our future application -- future
development in the outlots, subject to a PUD
process and a public hearing.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Russ, do you want
to just speak to that real quick?

MR. COLBY: Sure. Any future
development will require a PUD preliminary plan
approval which does not require a public hearing.
It only requires it be reviewed by the Plan
Commission and approval by the City Council.

There would be a public hearing required in
the event there was a special use requested, such
as a drive-through. If a drive-through was
proposed in one of those outlots, there would be

a hearing associated with that.
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CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Or if there was
any type of a variance.

MR. COLBY: Correct. If there was
any --

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Signage variance.

MR. COLBY: Yes. If there was any
kind of deviation to the zoning ordinance that
was proposed that was not already documented in
the PUD ordinance, they would need to amend the
PUD ordinance, and that would require a public
hearing.

MEMBER DOYLE: Mr. Chairman, I guess
what I'm thinking is that I like the concept plan
a lot, and that's why I led with that. I wanted
to make that clear.

I have some concerns about approving the
variance and approving sort of a general parking
requirement that is across the entire property
that could leave certain pedestrian traffic needs
and parking needs unaddressed and not give us the
mechanism to ensure that those things are going
to happen.

So I think if you were amenable to a

recommendation that came with some conditions.
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MR. PYLE: Yeah.

MEMBER DOYLE: It sounds like you're
looking at this already.

MR. PYLE: I have been looking at
this. The intent on these large centers and
communities of blending the parking as is
proposed here is that when you have such a sea of
parking lots, the uses aren't the same as in a
small strip center, you know, which really works
very well with the restaurants up here and also
the movie theater and the retail uses. All that
works very well together.

So if we're starting to define the parking,
we've got to be careful not to affect all this
area here because I don't think we have quite the
issue that we're having down here.

So there's some back and forth.

MEMBER DOYLE: Yes. I agree.

MR. PYLE: And, you know, what --
safety is in everybody's best interest. We have
been looking at this parking. You know, the
landscape in this drawing here, that's much more
than 15 feet. That's shown on this drawing too.

There's -- we haven't gotten down to -- we're
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getting more cars. This is more of an engineer's
plan. We've got a lot more parking spaces there
which you're seeing in the other drawing. We're
still working on that same concept too.

MEMBER DOYLE: I wonder if it's
possible to build those outlots without changing
that ring road there, you know, without pulling
it back and making -- you know, giving those
outlots enough space.

MR. PYLE: Well, when I go to this
drawing here, and the civil engineer who drew it
is here, these outlots have a 4 1/2 car per 1,000
number on them right now.

MEMBER DOYLE: They have what?

MR. PYLE: 4 1/2 cars to a 1,000
here.

MEMBER DOYLE: Okay.

MR. PYLE: 1It's not 10 to 1, but 10
to 1 is a little excessive, especially if these
were not all restaurants. You know, you would
have a blend again.

MEMBER DOYLE: Yeah.

MR. PYLE: On a drive-through.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Are you talking
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about per 1,000 square feet of floor area or for
leasable area?

MR. PYLE: Well, in these buildings,
that's pretty much the same.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yeah. 1If we're
talking site as a whole, there's quite a bit of
non-leasable area in the mall.

MR. PYLE: Right. But the parking
count for these out-parcel buildings are floor
area of the buildings.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Okay. But then
the mall as a whole is based on leasable area?

MR. PYLE: Yes. That's it. VYou see
we have two different conditions: This one and
this one out here. That's a good point.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Okay. Curt.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: David, do you
have square footages for building A, B, the
commercial building, and the paths?

MR. PYLE: A and B? I think --

MEMBER HENNINGSON: What's on your --
I didn't see it in the drawings.

MR. PYLE: This building is about
35,000 feet.
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MEMBER HENNINGSON: Okay.

MR. PYLE: And this one -- I think
it's on there. I think it's 15- to 20,000 feet,
somewhere in that range.

Is there a K under there?

MR. COLBY: I believe it's
25,000 square feet on the front.

MR. PYLE: 25,000.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: I think with this
drawing or -- I didn't see any square footages in
the working drawings from the engineer.

MR. PYLE: No. The engineer doesn't
measure. It's a civil engineer. He is doing the
land and the dirt. He is not measuring the
buildings.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: So we should
count on the square footages from --

MR. PYLE: From our conceptual plan.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: -- the conceptual
plan.

MR. PYLE: Yeah.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Are those going
to be single-tenant buildings for the outlots?

MR. PYLE: Ideally -- this one could
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be multi-tenant possibly depending on who we
attract. Ideally, we'd like to have those
single-tenant buildings.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Do you have
tenants lined up when you talk about the north
sites?

MR. PYLE: Now, no. I mean, we're
actively leasing and talking to tenants, but I
can't say this is the person who is moving into
that building at this point.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: On that building
A, does that go directly from A into the center,
or is that a separate path?

MR. PYLE: 1It's a separate building.
With this grading change here, what we've done is
kept the grade at around 2 percent, so it's an
easy move.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: 35,000 on one
floor?

MR. PYLE: Yes.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: In some of the
paperwork, it said that was a potential grocery.

MR. PYLE: It could be.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Then the other
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one, potential uses for that? That, again, was
just going to be a freestanding building;
correct?

MR. PYLE: You know, that could be
anywhere from home and garden furnishings, you
know, a place that needs larger spaces. I
hesitate to throw names out in a meeting like
this because, you know, where is my Restoration
Hardware? You can tell I have something, you
know, but that category can be out there or some
of these large jewelry stores. There's one
across the street.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: The commercial
building on the back --

MR. PYLE: Oh, this?

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Yes. Any idea
use-wise on that?

MR. PYLE: You know, it could be
medical. It could be office. Some of it depends
on what's going on back here, what works with
what else is going on back here. We've got
retail across the street, but it's kind of varied
retail. It's not really a great retail center.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Will there be
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access between the Hoffmann piece and this piece,
Rita?

MS. TUNGARE: No. At this point,
it's not contemplated based on what it is
showing, but it could potentially -- eventually
be done.

MEMBER SCHUETZ: What was the
question? We can't hear you here.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: The Oliver
Hoffmann piece is directly behind that 25,000
square foot of commercial, and that's the parcel
that will be partially commercial and partially
multi-family residential.

I asked if those two parcels were going to
be -- they're contiguous, and I asked if they
would have access, direct access to each other.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: I would think if
the landowners find it to be beneficial, then
there would be, but the City doesn't have any
plans for it. Do they?

MS. TUNGARE: No.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: One question that
was brought up at the planning and development

meeting was, you know, you currently have four
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anchors -- Von Maur, Carson Pirie Scott, Kohl's,
and the cinemas.

I guess, you know, the big question, I
think, was, you know, what's going to bring
people? What would draw them to this site?

MR. PYLE: Well, you've got a great
demographic here. You've got a -- the more we
explore the demographics, you've got the
customers here in town. So I think that we're
using that a lot with the tenant meetings we've
been having.

It's an enclosed mall. 1It's not -- you
know, the other thing is getting from the parking
lot in, you're not dealing with inclement
weather, the heat of summer or the rains or the
snow or winds.

It's a great environment. We've got a
pretty creative idea for an inside environment
with meeting areas, a fireplace, children's play
area, really a whole new look to the center.
It's not a paint and new tile on the floor sort
of renovation. We'll have Wi-Fi. There's lots
of reasons to congregate or reasons to be in

there.
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The theater brings in a lot of people.
They're going to bring in a lot more people when
it's got an active mall around it; but we're
trying to design this mall with the idea that the
theater customers are our customers too. Right
now they're not.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Right.
MR. PYLE: They come in and go out.
Some of them go in and out the back door.

So it's a meeting place. 1It's a place to
gather. And I think that's going to help bring
them along, with the demographic, and then I
think we're going to make this interesting enough
that we'll pull from outside of the area as well.

You know, the other center that's
successful close by is all outdoor and vary
elongated.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Geneva Commons.

MR. PYLE: That would be the unnamed
center.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Have you had
discussions with Macy's or any other large
anchors?

MR. PYLE: We have had discussions
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with them.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Any interest?

MR. PYLE: Well, the Von Maur -- we
want to keep the Von Maur in place and the
Carson. If Carson -- I don't think Carson and
Macy's are going to go in the same center at this
point in time.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Any other anchors
that would be possible?

MR. PYLE: You know, we're inclined
to looking at fewer stores and more stores.

We're looking.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: How big are the
current anchors you've got out there, Von Maur
and Carson's?

MR. PYLE: I think both of them, the
Von Maur and the Carson's have both expanded into
the mall. So I think the Von Maur is 100,000 --
131; and Carson's, 1490.

At the time they built the anchors, they
were -- they built them small because you had
fewer people in the community even though -- and
now that they're larger, the stores have expanded

into more.
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MEMBER HENNINGSON: So Von Maur 1is
131,000 and Carson Pirie Scott is 141.

MR. PYLE: Yeah.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Do you know how
big Kohl's is out here?

MR. PYLE: Sorry?

MEMBER HENNINGSON: The Kohl's store,
how large that is?

MR. PYLE: I think 40 -- 80.

MEMBER HENNINGSON: On retail A,
retail B, and the commercial site as well as the
outlots, are you going to control all of those
sites, or are you going to --

MR. PYLE: Are we going to control
them?

MEMBER HENNINGSON: Well, I guess are
you going to own all of those sites.

MR. PYLE: We are going to own all of
those sites. Currently, we do not own the
Von Maur and we do not own the Kohl's site. We
would own them all -- we could possibly -- you
know, we'll have an REA out -- we have an REA out
there. We're working on it.

But we may spin off the pad buildings at
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if it makes sense, but right now it's

get the whole thing as a cohesive project because

we've got a vision out there.

eventually

possible.

questions?

MEMBER HENNINGSON: You will
subdivide those pieces.

MR. PYLE: 1It's possible. 1It's

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Other

MEMBER DOYLE: Yes.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Brian.
MEMBER DOYLE: Two more

technicalities from the application.

One is I just want to draw attention -- so

there's a no percentage requirement for interior

parking lot landscaping because there will be

islands at

the end of each lane. I want to just

comment that I think if we can resolve the other

issues that I brought up, I think that would be a

good tradeoff.

The other thing that I want to ask about is

on page 6 of the staff analysis memo it says that

you've requested an exception to the 10 percent

per facade limitation on EIFS.
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MR. PYLE: EIFS, yes.

MEMBER DOYLE: The restriction that
it not be used within the lower 10 feet of the
building will apply.

This is something that I -- I know there
are other members of the Plan Commission who are
more knowledgeable of this than I am.

I guess my question really is for the Plan
Commission, if this raises any red flags, any
concerns?

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Tim? On page 7 of
the staff report.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Well,
actually, do you want to finish?

MEMBER DOYLE: That's my last --
that's my question.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Just, first
of all, the bulk of the site work that is going
to occur will occur at the south and west end of
the property; is that correct?

MR. PYLE: Yeah. 1In this area,
there's these landscaped mountains and over here.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: But on the

west end of the property, I mean, there's a huge
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amount of dirt.

MR. PYLE: Sorry?

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: There's a
huge amount of dirt you're moving on the west
side of the property.

MR. PYLE: Yes. MWell, there's going
to be a hole, and we're going to fill in the
hole.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Right.
Right. There's a lot of site work on that side
of the building. That's good. I mean, you're
going from 792 feet down to 770 -- 20 feet.

I noticed on the northeast corner of the
mall itself, right now you have a similar
condition. I mean, you're way high. I can't
point to it. Right there in that lot, you're
really high, and then you go -- in order to go
from there --

MR. PYLE: This is all low.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Right there,
yes. I mean, you're over 20 feet lower. Are you
going to do any kind of site work in there?

MR. PYLE: No. There's some

buildings being demolished here. So we'll be
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redeveloping that parking lot.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Right where
it says "lower level," there's nothing right
there.

MR. PYLE: Nothing, no. Right now --

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Right there.

MR. PYLE: 1I'm sorry.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Up, up, up.

MR. PYLE: Up here.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Between those
two, between Kohl's and --

MR. PYLE: No. We're not.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: No. Okay.

Then my other question was, you know, again
I want to say I like the concept. I like what
I'm seeing, but we're obviously not seeing
everything now. It's just a concept.

MR. PYLE: 1It's a concept.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: I have seen
properties redeveloped where they have taken, oh,
you know, maybe 25 percent of the facade and done
a beautiful job with it and painted the other
part and then patched it, and I guess this might

be a question for staff.
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I understand that this is a concept and it
would be a PUD. Does any other development that
occurs -- does that include design of this
building?

MR. COLBY: Well, with the
preliminary plan, the architecture will be
reviewed, but if there's an interest in ensuring
that a certain portion of the building, the
exterior be upgraded, we can include percentages
or some kind of requirements in the PUD ordinance
so that we ensure that is done. We can put
requirements in, but the architecture will be
reviewed later.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Okay. You
know, I'm not so, you know, bent on making you
add requirements. I just want to be -- concerned
that when you are finished with this mall, that
the whole thing looks like a new mall.

MR. PYLE: Right.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: I don't want
it to look like you patched in --

MR. PYLE: Practically, the Von Maur
store, which is not our store, it has a look, and

it's the Von Maur. Kohl's is not ours. Carson
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is a department store.

What we have to work with is this little
place right here, and we have all of this, and we
have this back wall.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: If you own
the building, I mean, you've got obviously some
opportunities to upgrade, you know, surfaces or
walls or any kind of architectural detail.

MR. PYLE: Well, we have to work with
our anchor tenants.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Oh, yeah, I
understand.

MR. PYLE: They don't like to
participate in this.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: I'm concerned
about the exterior because we know what that mall
looks 1like. You said so well at the very
beginning it's a fortress mall and, you know,
it's -- with what you've done or what you've
indicated in the southwest section, the food
court, I mean, that's beautiful; but then when
you walk around the corner, you're starring at a
blank wall 40 feet high, and it kind of takes

away from it.
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MR. PYLE: We don't like blank walls.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Anyway, I
just wanted to make that comment. 1I'm not so
certain I'd be inclined to make any specific
requirements in the application, but I want you
to be cognizant of that.

MR. PYLE: Uh-huh.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: I want to ask you
a few questions on the traffic flow.

I know one of the issues that this mall has
had since the beginning has been interconnection
and lack thereof.

How does the semicircular road -- the new
road that you have where the Sears building is
now, has there been any thought or discussion
about talking with the neighbor about
interconnecting through to that property? How
would you see that happening?

MR. PYLE: Meaning right here?

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yes.

MR. PYLE: 1I'd love to see that
happen. We have looked at that.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Does that line up

properly to be able to interconnect through that?
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MR. PYLE: 1It's pretty close. We
looked at it, and maybe there's some adjustment
that can be done. The actual natural -- I lost
that aerial. The natural connection there is on
the property that's already developed, not the
dirt next door to it.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yes.

MR. PYLE: That other property --

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: So it's further.

MR. PYLE: They have like a setback
or something there.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: 1It's further to
the north than where that road is?

MR. PYLE: No. I think we're pretty
close.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Okay.

MR. PYLE: Because we looked at that.
We like that idea of connecting there. That
makes a lot of sense. But we've got traffic back
here. I've spent some time out on this parking
lot, and there is a lot of traffic back there.
We don't know if it's because of the construction
or just there's so many people back there. They

come in the back, and they drive right through
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the mall.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: One of the other
issues -- and, I mean, the main entrance. I like
your idea. When you come into the mall, it's
kind of you have to go one way or another, and
it's a little bit confusing as to how you get to
a particular entrance.

Have you given any thought to the entrance
closest to the Von Maur store --

MR. PYLE: I'm doing the same thing
over here.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: -- well, kind of
directly into the food court, doing something
similar.

MR. PYLE: Yeah. You know, it's
funny, you know, that drive-through entrance
there has been a big debate between me and my
architect. 1I'm pushing this one. It could be
done. It's not -- it could be done.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: I know one of the
things that personally I've seen is when people
have to go around an obstacle and, you know,
proceed and go diagonally across the lot to where

the driveway really should have gone in the first
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place.

MR. PYLE: I think traffic-wise the
reason this could have been done traditionally is
that you want to keep your traffic moving into
the center, and you don't want them to stop and
possibly back up into the street. Where this is
a smaller road, that might be an issue there.
It's something you look at very carefully.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Okay. As far as
the parking goes, in other developments that
you've worked on, have you seen more of a
tendency -- I know we have -- you know, this
concept probably wasn't even around when the mall
was built, but shared parking for different uses?

You know, obviously, there are going to be
people that come to the movie theater at
different times than people who may use, you
know, the Von Maur or who use the office that
potentially could be a part of this project.

What have you seen in other projects as far
as the amount of parking that's needed?

MR. PYLE: There has been a trend
to -- most of the mall projects I've worked on or

have explored have started from codes back in the
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'89s, and it was five cars per 1,000 blended
which is okay.

I know at that center that I developed and
has since sold, changed hands twice, and the
current owner has reduced the parking down to
four cars per 1,000 in the same site. It has a
movie theater, and it has a gym, it has all
these -- and restaurants. It has all these
high-end, intensive uses, but because there's
such a sea of parking around the mall, they are
finding that they are starting to lower the
parking ratios for centers.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: That does kind of
tie into another issue, and that's pedestrian
connections.

MR. PYLE: Yeah.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: What do you
foresee -- and I see that you have written on
this plan ADA and path of travel right along the
main part that goes into the mall.

But what else would you suggest in the
parking area to accommodate pedestrians?

MR. PYLE: Well, we had some

community meetings last week, and some discussion
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was we live on the north side of the mall and
we'd like to walk to the mall.

So this week we've been kind of looking at
how can we -- you know, we've got our access.
Where this road used to be, there is a path
between these detention basins. If we don't have
to expand our basin too large, eliminate that,
we'd like to keep that; and then we're looking
for a way to get connected to this center without
walking down a whole row of parking.

So some of them might be going along the
edge here and then coming up through here, use
some of the landscape area for a path of travel
that encourages pedestrian traffic from all those
residents in the back.

I don't know how much pedestrian traffic
you're going to get off the state highway. I
think that's a --

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: There's a pretty
significant amount of residential around here. I
mean --

MR. PYLE: Oh, there is.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: -- there is quite

a bit of residential and pedestrian traffic. But
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not only that, pedestrians coming from cars
through the parking.

MR. PYLE: Within the parking lot.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Because I doubt
that you'll have any big problem with pedestrians
going into the mall, I hope.

But as far as maybe varying the rows with
different, you know, I don't know, islands or
things like that, strips along the rows of
parking, first of all, to encourage people to
stay within the aisles of the parking lot for the
safety of pedestrians, but also to give the
pedestrians somewhere to walk when they are going
into the mall.

MR. PYLE: Right. We also have to --
we're balancing snow removal too.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Sure.

MR. PYLE: If you start with curbs,
you know, they're going to get beat up by
something.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yeah.

MR. PYLE: Well, like I said, this
last week we've been actually working on a

pedestrian connection to the north where the
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residents are, and we'll look at this.
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Now, one of my
other -- I'll just ask one more thing.
One of my other things is regarding the
service areas that are around the mall, and I

know if you put the picture back up of the

current --

MR. PYLE: I lost it.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: -- Kohl's
entrance.

MR. PYLE: Unfortunately, I've closed
it out.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: At the Kohl's
entrance, there's a big ugly service entrance or
a service bay on one side and a big ugly one on
the other side.

MR. PYLE: There is.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: And in the back --

MR. PYLE: We're going to make a nice
entrance around that. We're working on that.

I have done that at another mall where I
ended up with gates, but gates don't get closed.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yeah. That's

exactly it.
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MR. PYLE: We'll work on it, but
those are two very ugly areas. One belongs to
Kohl's too.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yeah.

MR. PYLE: But that one entrance is
right on the side. We're looking at ways to
reconfigure the entrances, to give them some sort
of visual block, turn it the other way. We don't
have a drawing on that.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: You have another
one back that may get taken care of back by the
cinemas between the cinemas and Sears. There is
another entrance that when people come in that
drive-in --

MR. PYLE: That's the Sears, so
that's going away. That's right here.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: And along the back
of the mall, I'm glad that you showed the picture
of what, you know, kind of -- that architectural
rendering of what the back of the mall will look
like. I just want to make sure that it doesn't
end up -- I mean, right now at least when they
started the mall, there was an intent to have

something nice to look at in the carousel and the
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glass windows and all of that.

You know, when I first saw the plan, I
thought, oh, geez, are they just going to tear
that off and put a wall up.

MR. PYLE: Yeah. No.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Because I doubt
any of the neighbors to the back are going to
want to look at that.

MR. PYLE: No.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: So that would be
one of my other areas of concern, to put
substantial landscaping as well as obviously the
store itself.

MR. PYLE: Sure.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Sue.

MEMBER AMATANGELO: I just want to
make a comment to tag along with what Todd had
mentioned in regards to the pedestrian traffic.
I just would like to also have you keep the
bicycle traffic and provisions for that in mind.

MR. PYLE: That's happening
everywhere.

MEMBER AMATANGELO: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yeah, Brian.
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MEMBER DOYLE: What I was going to
tag onto that discussion is you've mentioned
earlier the Oliver Hoffmann parcel and
multi-family on that parcel.

One thing multi-family --

MR. PYLE: 1Is that what you're
talking about doing?

MEMBER DOYLE: Well, it's been
rezoned for multi-family in one area.

One of the considerations there was a
transportation hub on Route 64 there. Route 64
is one of the few bus routes in the Pace system.

So when you're talking about transportation
or pedestrian issues, you may consider that
pedestrians may be more likely in the future to
come from the east side of your property, if that
does, in fact, become a transportation hub.

MR. PYLE: More people.

MEMBER DOYLE: So that's just
something that has come before this Commission
before that I wanted to share with you.

The other thing that I wanted to ask was
that I didn't hear any feedback from other

commissioners about that variance request
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regarding EIFS.

MR. PYLE: Oh, can I address that?

MEMBER DOYLE: I would love you to.

MR. PYLE: Okay. The reason I
brought that up -- I know EIFS has had kind of a
very rocky start, and we had this conversation
with Rita and Russ and so on; and to do some of
this articulation on a building, a lot of that is
Styrofoam covered with EIFS. It's that
decorative stuff, not the system that's
waterproofing the walls so much, but it's the
corbels and parapets and some of that
articulation that you can put on a wall to make
it more interesting and not being a blank wall.

When I saw that 10 percent, I went, well,
that's -- we're trying to make this look nice,
and it would be nice to be able to use foam and
EIFS for the articulation on the wall, not sort
of the 10 percent.

A lot has changed with the EIFS. You know,
in the early days, the problem was it didn't have
a weeping system. It got a lot of moisture
behind it. There was mold. It popped off.

There were tremendous issues with EIFS for many
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years.

It's grown up since then, but I'm really
not looking for a wall of EIFS. I'm looking for
an opportunity to articulate and put some design
on that.

MEMBER DOYLE: As I said, this is not
anywhere close to my area of expertise. I just
know that it has been talked about on this
Commission, and I wanted to ask -- I'm not
hearing anything about it, so I'm not inclined to
go anywhere with it.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: The only
concern -- you know, using it for accents, it's
not a problem. If you're going to sheet the
building with it, that's a whole different issue.

There is one consideration that EIFS still
has today that they haven't ever overcome, and
that is it fades.

MR. PYLE: It what?

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: It fades. I
mean, it just fades.

MR. PYLE: You paint it.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Yeah. That's

what I was talking about earlier.
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MR. PYLE: 3Just stucco.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: It will look
nice but --

MR. PYLE: Yeah.

VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: For accents,
it's not an issue.

MR. PYLE: That was the whole
conversation that we had was I'd like to put some
accent on the walls, and foam is the way to go.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Any
more questions, Plan Commission?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Does
any member of the public have questions of the
Applicant? If you can come on up.

MR. PAGE: Bill Page, 1121 South
Second.

First of all, short of spreading rose
pedals, I don't think we can thank you enough for
taking this on.

Seriously, this has been 20 years we've
watched this go up and decline, and one of the
things -- as I'm sitting here, I'm thinking --

and forgive me, because I know you're giving your
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time and so on. But we're being thrown a
lifeline, an economic engine that we haven't had
in years, and I just want to make sure that they
feel as welcome as they can be and supported as
can be, and that when we look at the lifeline, we
don't start criticizing the weave and the rope
and the color of it.

Again, this is so important to this
community, and I want to assure you that the
citizens are fully supportive of an innovative
plan like this, and I hope this comes to
fruition. I know that elevations and so on don't
often come out the way that we hope they do, but
from what I've seen and from what we know about
the problems that you're going to face with the
grading, that incredibly odd upper Carson's,
lower Kohl's, and so on.

Also the access roads, and I do want to
remind everybody that all of those decisions were
done in commissions and councils and so on,
including closing off the access road, including
not having the political will to bring that road
through that you were discussing, Todd, and those

things have to be revisited too, but this time we
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have this one chance, and let's do it right.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Thank you. All
right. Any other questions of the Applicant?

MR. RABCHUK: John Rabchuk, 914 Ash
Street in St. Charles.

I too like the concept plan a lot. You
know, comments sometimes come across as
criticism, but rather, there are questions and
just things that need to be addressed.

One is the comprehensive plan recently
passed by the City and adopted, there is a
requirement in there to take into account as much
sustainability as possible. This is an
opportunity because of the size of this project
to not just divert rainwater off to the side.

You know, we all went through all of the flooding
this spring, and we've had some in recent years.

There's a real opportunity here to put the
water back in the ground where it belongs,
develop maybe the pathways you have talked about
for pedestrians using permeable products, divert
the water onto those, so that we're not dealing

with just runoffs and big sewer areas and all
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that sort of thing.

It's an excellent opportunity to do that,
and I think, you know, some of your comments by
members of the Commission with regards to
walkability and those sorts of things all play
into that, bicycle paths, et cetera. That we
could do that. That only represents 10 percent
of the pad itself, you know, doing that sort of
thing, but it really makes a huge difference in
the amount of water that we can deal with.

I too have a question about and just want
to make sure that mass transit is dealt with. I
think from one of the other pictures here, if
that road comes in from the west, that maybe
there's a bus route that would be natural to come
off of Kirk Road and come in close to where this
new food court area is, and, you know, be a
pickup point or a drop-off point and then come
back onto 64, so that we're not carving out an
area of 64 and our beautiful new highway there,
just some things to think about.

In addition to the road from the west going
through, which I think is a terrific idea, the

Foxfield Drive area to the north and where it
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comes off of Kirk Road now is a nightmare and
always has been. You have to make a couple of
quick turns. You know, you can't see always.

There's an opportunity here again to
correct that and maybe make the northern interior
road be more of an actual roadway, to design --
in the parking lot design so that it's set back
so that the parking lot just doesn't feed right
into it, but rather there's limited access points
so that we're diverting traffic off of Kirk Road
over to Smith Road. Because I think there is a
natural amount of traffic that comes across
there, and I think it would be desirable in terms
of giving the mall more visibility from the north
side as well.

I'm a little bit concerned too that, you
know, where the two paths are, for example, in
the southwest corner right at that main entrance,
as you would be -- as the concept plan is
designed, that's a real traffic nightmare.

You've got two new outbuildings with entrances to
small parking lots in addition to the roadway
coming off of 64, in addition to the roadway

going to the restaurant court. You've got a lot
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of things going on in a very small area. I don't
know the way to deal with that, but it just seems
like that's an opportunity for something that
would work a whole lot smoother and easier.

Similarly, on what would be the
southeastern corner, those outlots that are there
up against that one retention pond, the parking
is nowhere near in proximity to that. Stuff
further to the east, that's the Saver's area, and
that's not part of this parcel, so you can't use
that parking area. So you've got those two
buildings kind of isolated with no real way to
get to them. I think that's an issue.

You know, and maybe there is a way to
incorporate some walking and bicycling along 64
on that north side and reconfigure that interior
road a little bit.

My last point is one of -- as long as we're
doing this, that I think it's a great opportunity
to include some public art as well in some
spaces, and I think it would make this all that
much more attractive and be a destination spot
for the City.

Thanks.
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CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Thank
you.

Any other questions? Questions, comments,
anyone?
(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right.
Anything else from members of the Plan
Commission?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Does the Applicant
have anything else to say?

MR. PYLE: I'm good.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Well,
at this point in time, if the Plan Commission
feels that we have enough evidence to be able to
make a decision either for approval of the
application or denial of the application to City
Council --

MR. COLBY: Todd, if I could make a
few comments.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yes.

MR. COLBY: Based on some of the
discussions that occurred at the meeting, it

might make sense for us to work with the
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Applicant and look at some changes to that table
that's been included, possibly document some of
the things that were brought up from the Plan
Commission as elements to include in the plan.
So it might be best to leave the public hearing
open so we can do that and bring back some
revised exhibits along with the staff report.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Okay.

MR. COLBY: So we can enter that into
the record and vote on the application at the
next meeting.

MEMBER DOYLE: Which table are you
referring to?

MR. COLBY: The table that's attached
to the staff report, the PUD standards.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: This? Exhibit A?

MR. COLBY: Yes.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Okay. All right.

Is there anything else besides that that
you feel needs to -- we need to address prior to
now and the next meeting?

MR. COLBY: No.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right.

MEMBER DOYLE: Mr. Chairman, I would
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motion to continue the public hearing to the Plan

Commission's next meeting on, I believe it's

October 22nd.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: October 22nd.

All right. 1Is there a second?

seconded.

MEMBER SCHUETZ: Second.
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: 1It's moved and
Any discussion on the motion?

(No response.)
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Tim.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Amatangelo.
MEMBER AMATANGELO: Yes.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Schuetz.
MEMBER SCHUETZ: Yes.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Doyle.
MEMBER DOYLE: Yes.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Pretz.
MEMBER PRETZ: Yes.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Henningson.
MEMBER HENNINGSON: Yes.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Wallace.
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Yes.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Kessler, yes.
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. That
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motion passes unanimously. The public hearing
for Item 4 is continued to October 22nd, and that
concludes 4 on the agenda.

Item 5 is meeting announcements. The next
meeting is October 22nd, November 5th, November
19th all in Council Chambers.

Do we know, staff, is there -- do you
intend for the meetings after the next meeting to
take place? 1Is there any chance that those would
cancel?

MR. COLBY: At this time, we are
scheduling items for November, yes.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: I'm sorry. Say it
again.

MR. COLBY: We are scheduling items
for November.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Any
additional business from the Plan Commission
members?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. Staff?

MS. TUNGARE: No.

CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Citizens?

(No response.)
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CHAIRMAN WALLACE: All right. 1Is
there a motion to close?
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: So moved.
MEMBER DOYLE: Second.
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: I'm sorry. To
adjourn the meeting. Thank you.
VICE CHAIRMAN KESSLER: Motion to
adjourn.
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: 1Is there a second?
MEMBER DOYLE: Second.
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: Any opposed?
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN WALLACE: The meeting of the
St. Charles Plan Commission is closed at
8:17 p.m.
Thank you.
(Which were all the proceedings
had in the above-entitled matter

ending at the hour of 8:17 p.m.)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF K AN E )

I, JOANNE E. ELY, Certified Shorthand

Reporter No. 84-4169, CSR, RPR, and a Notary
Public in and for the County of Kane, State of
Illinois, do hereby certify that I reported in
shorthand the proceedings had in the
above-entitled matter and that the foregoing is a
true, correct, and complete transcript of my
shorthand notes so taken as aforesaid.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed my Notarial Seal this 15th day
of October, 2013.

My commission expires
May 16, 2016.
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